

ADOPTED: 14 May 2019 doi: 10.2903/j.efsa.2019.5719

# Assessment of the application for renewal of authorisation of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) for sows

EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed (FEEDAP), Vasileios Bampidis, Giovanna Azimonti, Maria de Lourdes Bastos, Henrik Christensen, Birgit Dusemund, Maryline Kouba, Mojca Kos Durjava, Marta López-Alonso, Secundino López Puente, Francesca Marcon, Baltasar Mayo, Alena Pechová, Mariana Petkova, Fernando Ramos, Yolanda Sanz, Roberto Edoardo Villa, Ruud Woutersen, Montserrat Anguita, Jaume Galobart, Orsolya Holczknecht, Paola Manini, Jordi Tarrés-Call, Elisa Pettenati and Fabiola Pizzo

# Abstract

Following a request from the European Commission, EFSA was asked to deliver a scientific opinion on the assessment of the application for renewal of authorisation of the product Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) as a feed additive for sows. *S. cerevisiae* is considered by EFSA to have qualified presumption of safety (QPS) status. The applicant has provided data demonstrating that the additive currently in the market complies with the conditions of authorisation. The Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed (FEEDAP) Panel confirms that the use of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> under the current authorised conditions of use is safe for sows, the consumers and the environment. The additive is considered as a potential skin and eye irritant and skin/ respiratory sensitiser. There is no need to assess the efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> in the context of the renewal of the authorisation.

© 2019 European Food Safety Authority. *EFSA Journal* published by John Wiley and Sons Ltd on behalf of European Food Safety Authority.

Keywords: zootechnical additive, Biosprint, Saccharomyces cerevisiae, renewal, QPS, sows

Requestor: European Commission

Question number: EFSA-Q-2018-00474

Correspondence: feedap@efsa.europa.eu



**Panel members:** Giovanna Azimonti, Vasileios Bampidis, Maria de Lourdes Bastos, Henrik Christensen, Birgit Dusemund, Maryline Kouba, Mojca Kos Durjava, Marta López-Alonso, Secundino López Puente, Francesca Marcon, Baltasar Mayo, Alena Pechová, Mariana Petkova, Fernando Ramos, Yolanda Sanz, Roberto Villa and Ruud Woutersen.

**Acknowledgements** The EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed) wishes to acknowledge all European competent institutions, Member State bodies and other organisations that provided data for this scientific output.

**Suggested citation:** EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed), Bampidis V, Azimonti G, Bastos ML, Christensen H, Dusemund B, Kouba M, Kos Durjava M, López-Alonso M, López Puente S, Marcon F, Mayo B, Pechová A, Petkova M, Ramos F, Sanz Yolanda, Villa RE, Woutersen R, Anguita M, Galobart J, Holczknecht O, Manini P, Tarrés-Call J, Pettenati E and Pizzo F, 2019. Scientific Opinion on the assessment of the application for renewal of authorisation of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) for sows. EFSA Journal 2019;17(6):5719, 11 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2019.5719

#### **ISSN:** 1831-4732

© 2019 European Food Safety Authority. *EFSA Journal* published by John Wiley and Sons Ltd on behalf of European Food Safety Authority.

This is an open access article under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution-NoDerivs License, which permits use and distribution in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited and no modifications or adaptations are made.



The EFSA Journal is a publication of the European Food Safety Authority, an agency of the European Union.



# **Table of contents**

Abstrac	\bstract			
1.	Introduction	4		
1.1.	Background and Terms of Reference	4		
1.2.	Additional information	4		
2.	Data and methodologies	4		
2.1.	Data	4		
2.2.	Methodologies	5		
3.	Assessment	5		
3.1.	Characterisation	5		
3.1.1.	Characterisation of the additive	5		
3.1.2.	Characterisation of the active agent			
3.1.3.	Conditions of use	6		
3.2.	Safety	6		
3.2.1.	Conclusion on safety			
3.3.	Efficacy for sows	7		
3.4.	Post-market monitoring	7		
4.	Conclusions			
Docum	Documentation provided to EFSA			
Chrono	Chronology			
Referer	References			
Abbrev	Abbreviations			
Appendix A – List of references retrieved from the literature search provided by the applicant to support				
safety of	9 9 Safety of the additive			

# 1. Introduction

# **1.1. Background and Terms of Reference**

Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003<sup>1</sup> establishes the rules governing the Community authorisation of additives for use in animal nutrition. In particular, Article 14(1) of that Regulation lays down that an application for renewal shall be sent to the Commission at the latest 1 year before the expiry date of the authorisation.

The European Commission received a request from Prosol S.p.A.<sup>2</sup> for renewal of the authorisation of the product Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885), when used as a feed additive for sows (category: zootechnical additive; functional group: gut flora stabiliser).

According to Article 7(1) of Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003, the Commission forwarded the application to the European Food Safety Authority (EFSA) as an application under Article 14(1) (renewal of the authorisation). The particulars and documents in support of the application were considered valid by EFSA as of 22 August 2018.

According to Article 8 of Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003, EFSA, after verifying the particulars and documents submitted by the applicant, shall undertake an assessment in order to determine whether the feed additive complies with the conditions laid down in Article 5. EFSA shall deliver an opinion on the safety for the target animals, consumer, user and the environment and on the efficacy of the product Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885), when used under the proposed conditions of use (see Section 3.1.3).

# **1.2.** Additional information

Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) is currently authorised in sows<sup>3</sup>, dairy cows, horses,<sup>4</sup> piglets (weaned),<sup>5</sup> cattle for fattening,<sup>6</sup> minor ruminants for fattening and minor ruminants for dairy products.<sup>7</sup>

The EFSA FEEDAP Panel issued several opinions on the safety and efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) in different target species (EFSA, 2004; EFSA FEEDAP Panel, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2013, 2015).

## 2. Data and methodologies

#### 2.1. Data

The present assessment is based on data submitted by the applicant in the form of a technical dossier<sup>8</sup> in support of the authorisation request for the use of  $Biosprint^{(R)}$  (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) as a feed additive.

The FEEDAP Panel used the data provided by the applicant together with data from other sources, such as previous risk assessments by EFSA and experts' knowledge, to deliver the present output.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 September 2003 on additives for use in animal nutrition. OJ L 268, 18.10.2003, p. 29.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Prosol S.p.A. via Carso 99, Madone (Italy).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Commission Regulation (EC) No 896/2009 of 25 September 2009 concerning the authorisation of a new use of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885 as a feed additive for sows (holder of the authorisation Prosol SpA). OJ L 256, 29.9.2009, p 6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Commission Regulation (EU) No 1119/2010 of 2 December 2010 concerning the authorisation of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885 as a feed additive for dairy cows and horses and amending Regulation (EC) No 1520/2007 (holder of the authorisation Prosol SpA). OJ L 317, 3.12.2010, p 9.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Commission Regulation (EU) No 170/2011 of 23 February 2011 concerning the authorisation of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885 as a feed additive for piglets (weaned) and amending Regulation (EC) No 1200/2005 (holder of authorisation Prosol SpA), OJ L 49, 24.2.2011, p 8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Commission implementing Regulation (EU) No 1059/2013 of 29 October 2013 concerning the authorisation of a preparation of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885 as a feed additive for cattle for fattening and amending Regulation (EC) No 492/2006 (holder of the authorisation Prosol SpA) OJ L 289, 31.10.2013, p 30.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Commission implementing Regulation (EU) 2016/104 of 27 January 2016 concerning the authorisation of a preparation of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885 as a feed additive for minor ruminant species for fattening and dairy production (holder of the authorisation Prosol SpA), OJ L 21, 28.1.2016, p 71.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> FEED dossier reference: FAD-2018-0032.

The European Union Reference Laboratory (EURL) considered that the conclusions and recommendations reached in the previous assessment are valid and applicable for the current application. $^9$ 

#### 2.2. Methodologies

The approach followed by the FEEDAP Panel to assess the safety and the efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (*Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885) is in line with the principles laid down in Regulation (EC) No 429/2008 and the Guidance on the renewal of the authorisation of feed additives (EFSA FEEDAP Panel, 2013).

#### 3. Assessment

The additive Biosprint<sup>®</sup> is a preparation of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885. The current application is for the renewal of the authorisation of use as a zootechnical additive (functional group: gut flora stabiliser) in feed for sows. The additive is authorised with a minimum declared content of  $1 \times 10^9$  CFU/g.

#### 3.1. Characterisation

#### **3.1.1.** Characterisation of the additive

The additive is authorised in powder and granular forms, both with a minimum content of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* MUCL 39885 of  $1 \times 10^9$  CFU/g. In the first application, three forms were described, powder, oval granulated and spherical. The applicant states that the powder form is not produced anymore, and that the product is present on the market in two forms: Biosprint<sup>®</sup> oval granulated (G) and Biosprint<sup>®</sup> spherical (S). The strain is the additive itself and no carriers or excipients are present in the final product.

The applicant declared that the manufacturing process and additive have not been modified since the previous authorisation and provided data from recent batches on the composition of the additive.

The applicant states that the specifications are  $1\times10^9$  with an average  $1.5\times10^{10}$  CFU/g. Compliance with specifications was confirmed by analysis of five batches of the G form (range  $1.7-2.0\times10^{10}$ , mean  $2.0\times10^{10}$  CFU/g) and for five batches of the S form (range  $1.8-2.3\times10^{10}$ , mean  $2.0\times10^{10}$  CFU/g).

The same batches were analysed for microbial contamination. The results showed confirm compliance with limit levels (*Escherichia coli* < 10 CFU/g, *Salmonella* absence in 25 g, moulds < 10 CFU/g, *Listeria* absent).<sup>10</sup>

The possible presence of contaminants was measured on three batches of the product. Aflatoxins B1, B2, G1 and G2 < 0.5 mg/kg, deoxynivalenol < 20  $\mu$ g/kg, ochratoxin A < 1  $\mu$ g/kg, zearalenone < 10  $\mu$ g/kg. Arsenic  $\leq$  0.005 mg/kg, cadmium 0.001 mg/kg, mercury < 0.005 mg/kg, lead  $\leq$  0.001 mg/kg, nitrites, dioxins, dioxin-like polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), polychlorinated dibenzo-*p*-dioxin/polychlorinated dibenzofuran (PCDD/PCDF), non-dioxin-like PCBs, melamine, cyanuric acid, pesticides.<sup>11,12,13</sup> Based on the results, no concern is identified.

The applicant provided results on particle size measured by sieving on three samples of the product for each formulation. The analysis confirmed the previous data provided by the applicant. The average particle size of the spherical form was 710  $\mu$ m, with no particles below 355  $\mu$ m. The average particle size of the granular form was between 250 and 355  $\mu$ m, with no particles below 90  $\mu$ m.<sup>14</sup>

#### **3.1.2.** Characterisation of the active agent

The active ingredient of the additive Biosprint<sup>®</sup> is the yeast *S. cerevisiae* MUCL 39885. The strain of *S. cerevisiae* is deposited in Belgian Coordinated Collection of Microorganism BCCM<sup>™</sup>/MUCL Culture

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> The full report is available on the EURL website: https://ec.europa.eu/jrc/sites/jrcsh/files/FinRep-FAD-2009-0028.pdf

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Annex\_31.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Annex\_2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Annex\_3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Annex\_4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Annex\_29.

Collection – Mycothéque de l'Université Catholique de Louvain with Deposit number 39885.<sup>15</sup> The strain of *S. cerevisiae* used in the additive is not genetically modified.

The applicant provided evidences in support of the taxonomical identification of the strain as *S. cerevisiae*. In particular, the applicant provided results from a whole genome sequence (WGS) analysis,<sup>16</sup> a phylogenetic analysis<sup>17</sup> and a whole genome single nucleotide polymorphism (SNP) analysis.<sup>18</sup> Based on the data, the strain was confirmed as *Saccharomyces cerevisiae*.

#### **3.1.3.** Conditions of use

The additive is currently authorised to be used in sows at a minimum concentration of  $6.4 \times 10^9$  CFU/kg of complete feedstuffs. The applicant does not propose to modify the conditions of use as authorised.

#### 3.2. Safety

The species *S. cerevisiae* is considered by EFSA to be suitable for the Qualified Presumption of Safety (QPS) approach to safety assessment (EFSA, 2007; EFSA BIOHAZ Panel, 2017). This approach requires the identity of the strain to be conclusively established. In the context of the current application, the identity of the strain was confirmed as *S. cerevisiae*. Accordingly, this strain is presumed safe for the target species, consumers of products from animals fed the additive and the environment.

The safety for the users has been evaluated in a previous opinion (EFSA FEEDAP Panel, 2010). The Panel concluded in 2010 that the additive should be considered as a potential skin and eye irritant and skin sensitiser and that the inhalation exposure would be minimal. No additional data were provided in the current application. Considering the proteinaceous nature of the additive, it should be considered a potential respiratory sensitiser.

The applicant submitted the results of a literature search, which covered the period from 2008 to 2018, to provide information on the safety for the target species, the consumers, the users and the environment. The databases used were CAB Abstracts, PubMed and Scopus. The strings used for the search, the exclusion criteria and the search strategy were provided.<sup>19</sup>

The literature search for the target species produced 22 results, 6 of them were discarded by the applicant based on the exclusion criteria.<sup>20</sup> Out of the 16 remaining papers, 9 were EFSA scientific opinions regarding the use of *S. cerevisiae* in swine as a feed additive. None of the left seven references highlighted a possible safety concern (see Appendix A).

The literature search for the consumers produced 30 results, 27 of them were discarded by the applicant based on the exclusion criteria. Out of the three remaining papers, two were EFSA scientific opinions regarding the use of *S. cerevisiae* as a feed additive. The left one is not relevant for the assessment of the safety for the consumers.<sup>21</sup> (see Appendix A).

The safety for the users has been evaluated in a previous opinion. No data on skin and eye irritancy or skin sensitisation have been provided; therefore, Biosprint<sup>®</sup> should be considered as a potential irritant and sensitiser and treated accordingly. Based on the particle size distribution, Biosprint<sup>®</sup> S and Biosprint<sup>®</sup> G are unlikely to form respirable dusts. It has been concluded that the inhalation exposure associated with the use of this product would be minimal (EFSA FEEDAP Panel, 2010).

The literature search for the user safety produced 26 results, 24 of them were discarded by the applicant based on the exclusion criteria, and 1 was an EFSA scientific opinion regarding the use of *S. cerevisiae* as a feed additive. The left one is not relevant for the assessment of the safety for the user.<sup>22</sup> (see Appendix A).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Annex\_5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Additional information/Annex\_1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Additional information/Annex\_3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Technical Dossier/Section II/Additional information/Annex\_4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> Technical Dossier/Section III/Annex\_0.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> Technical Dossier/Section III/Annex\_3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> Technical Dossier/Section III/Annex\_4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> Technical Dossier/Section III/Annex\_5.

The literature search for the safety of the environment produced 143 results, 95 of them were discarded by the applicant based on the exclusion criteria. All the left papers retrieved did not highlight a safety concern for the environment<sup>23</sup> (see Appendix A).

#### **3.2.1.** Conclusion on safety

The Panel concluded that Biosprint<sup>®</sup> is considered safe for the target species, for the consumer, and the environment. The additive should be considered as a potential skin and eye irritant and skin sensitiser and the inhalation exposure would be minimal. No additional data were provided in the current application.

#### **3.3. Efficacy for sows**

The present application for renewal of the authorisation does not include a proposal for amending or supplementing the conditions of the original authorisation that would have an impact on the efficacy of the additive. Therefore, there is no need for assessing the efficacy of the additive in the context of the renewal of the authorisation.

#### 3.4. Post-market monitoring

The FEEDAP Panel considers that there is no need for specific requirements for a post-market monitoring plan other than those established in the Feed Hygiene Regulation<sup>24</sup> and Good Manufacturing Practice.

# 4. Conclusions

The applicant has provided data demonstrating that the additive currently in the market complies with the conditions of authorisation.

The FEEDAP Panel confirms that the use of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> under the current authorised conditions of use is safe for sows, the consumers and the environment.

The additive is considered as a potential skin and eye irritant and skin/respiratory sensitizer.

There is no need to assess the efficacy of  $\mathsf{Biosprint}^{\mathbb{R}}$  in the context of the renewal of the authorisation.

## **Documentation provided to EFSA**

- 1) Biosprint<sup>®</sup> for sows. June 2018. Submitted by Prosol S.p.A.
- 2) Biosprint<sup>®</sup> for sows. Supplementary information. April 2019. Submitted by Prosol S.p.A.
- 3) Comments from Member States.

# Chronology

Date	Event
23/05/2018	Dossier received by EFSA. Biosprint <sup>®</sup> for sows. Submitted by Prosol S.p.A.
04/06/2018	Reception mandate from the European Commission
22/08/2016	Application validated by EFSA – Start of the scientific assessment
15/04/2018	Request of supplementary information to the applicant in line with Article 8(1)(2) of Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003 – Scientific assessment suspended. <i>Issues: characterisation, safety for target species, safety for the consumer, safety for the user, safety for the environment</i>
22/11/2018	Comments received from Member States
14/05/2019	Opinion adopted by the FEEDAP Panel. End of the Scientific assessment

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> Technical Dossier/Section III/Annex\_6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> Regulation (EC) No 183/2005 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 January 2005 laying down requirements for feed hygiene. OJ L 35, 8.2.2005, p. 1.



# References

- EFSA (European Food Safety Authority), 2004. Opinion of the Scientific Panel on additives and products or substances used in animal feed (FEEDAP) on a request from the Commission on the safety of 'Biosprint BCCMTM/ MUCL39885' for the dairy cow. EFSA Journal 2004;2(3):26, 6 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2004.26
- EFSA (European Food Safety Authority), 2007. Introduction of a Qualified Presumption of Safety (QPS) approach for assessment of selected microorganisms referred to EFSA - Opinion of the Scientific Committee. EFSA Journal 2007;5(12):587, 16 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2007.587
- EFSA BIOHAZ Panel (EFSA Panel on Biological Hazards), Ricci A, Allende A, Bolton D, Chemaly M, Davies R, Girones R, Herman L, Koutsoumanis K, Lindqvist R, Nørrung B, Robertson L, Ru G, Sanaa M, Simmons M, Skandamis P, Snary E, Speybroeck N, Ter Kuile B, Threlfall J, Wahlström H, Cocconcelli PS, Klein G (deceased), Prieto Maradona M, Querol A, Peixe L, Suarez JE, Sundh I, Vlak JM, Aguillera-Gomez M, Barizzone F, Brozzi R, Correia S, Heng L, Istace F, Lythgo C and Fernández Escámez PS, 2017. Scientific Opinion on the update of the list of QPS-recommended biological agents intentionally added to food or feed as notified to EFSA. EFSA Journal 2017;15(3):4664, 177 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2017.4664
- EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed), 2009. Safety and efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (Saccharomyces cerevisiae) as a feed additive for sows. EFSA Journal 2009;7(2):970, 9 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2009.970
- EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed), 2010. Scientific Opinion on the safety and efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (Saccharomyces cerevisiae) as a feed additive for dairy cows. EFSA Journal 2010;8(7):1662, 8 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2010.1662
- EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed), 2011. Scientific Opinion on the safety and efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (Saccharomyces cerevisiae) for cattle for fattening. EFSA Journal 2011;9(11):2439, 8 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2011.2439
- EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed), 2015. Scientific Opinion on the safety and efficacy of Biosprint<sup>®</sup> (Saccharomyces cerevisiae MUCL 39885) for minor ruminant species for meat and milk production. EFSA Journal 2015;13(7):4199, 8 pp. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa. 2015.4199
- EFSA FEEDAP Panel (EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed), 2013. Guidance on the renewal of the authorization of feed additives. EFSA Journal 2013;11(10):3431, 8 pp. https://doi.org/ 10.2903/j.efsa.2013.3431

# Abbreviations

- BCCM Belgian Coordinated Collection of Microorganism
- CFU colony forming unit
- EURL European Union Reference Laboratory
- FEEDAP EFSA Panel on Additives and Products or Substances used in Animal Feed
- MUCL Mycothéque de l'Université Catholique de Louvain
- PCB polychlorinated biphenyl
- PCDD polychlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxin
- PCDF polychlorinated dibenzofuran
- QPS qualified presumption of safety
- SNP single nucleotide polymorphism
- WGS whole genome sequence



# Appendix A – List of references retrieved from the literature search provided by the applicant to support safety of the additive

- Abdulsamie H, Malek A, Mouhnad S, Amal D, Motassim S, 2013. Removal of petroleum-crude oil from aqueous solution by *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* SHSY strain necessitates at least an inducible CYP450ALK homolog gene. Journal of Basic Microbiology, 54, 358–368.
- Alcantara VA, Pajares IG, Simbahan JF, Villarante NR, Rubio ML, 2010. Characterization of biosurfactant from *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* 2031 and evaluation of emulsification activity for potential application in bioremediation. Philippine Agricultural Scientist, 93, 22–30.
- Al-Zahrani HA, El-saied AI, 2011. Induction of recombinations in *Saccharomyces Cerevisiae* via horizontal gene transfer for bioremediation of heavy metal toxicity from factory effluents. Journal of American Science, 7, 292–229.
- Anh Do T, Sakai T, Kishida M, Furuta M, 2016. Isolation and characterization of a variant manganese resistant strain of *Saccharomyces cerevisiae*. Biocontrol Science, 21, 253–260.
- Garg A, 2016. Level of Cd in different types of soil of Rohtak district and its bioremediation. Journal of Environmental Chemical Engineering, 4, 3797–3802.
- Asger M, 2012. Biosorption of reactive dyes: A review. Water, Air, and Soil Pollution, 223, 2417–2435.
- Aulitto M, Fusco S, Bartolucci S, Franzén CJ, Contursi P, 2010. Studies on biodegradation of "Congo Red" using Saccharomyces cerevisiae and Lactobacillus sporogenes. Biotechnology for biofuels, 10, 210.
- Bayoumi Hamuda H, Toth N, 2012. Functioning of divalent alkaline metal on yeast multiplication in heavy metal contaminated soil. Tájökológiai Lapok, 10, 195–208.
- Borges JCS, Branco PC, Pressinotti LN, Severino D, Machado Cunha da Silva JR, 2010. Intranuclear crystalloids of Antarctic sea urchins as a biomarker for oil contamination. Polar Biology, 33, 843–839.
- Carballo ME, Heydrich M, Rojas N, Salgado I, Romeu B, Manzano AM, Larrea J, Domínguez O, Martínez A, Sánchez MI, Cruz M, Guerra G, Rojas M, Ramos M, 2011. Impact of microbial and chemical pollution in Cuban freshwater ecosystems: Strategies for environmental recovery. Biotecnología Aplicada, 4.
- Chen Z, Li Z, Chen G, Zhu J, Liu Q, Feng T, 2017. In situ formation of AgNPs on *S. cerevisiae* surface as bionanocomposites for bacteria killing and heavy metal removal. International Journal of Environmental Science and Technology, 14, 1635–1642.
- Chen C, Wang J, 2007. Removal of Pb<sup>2+</sup>, Ag<sup>+</sup>, Cs<sup>+</sup> and Sr<sup>2+</sup> from aqueous solution by brewery's waste biomass. Journal of Hazardous Materials, 151, 65–70.
- Chwastowski J, Kołoczek H, 2013. The kinetic reduction of Cr(VI) by yeast *Saccharomyces cerevisiae*, *Phaffia rhodozyma* and their protoplasts. Acta Biochimica Polonica, 60(4).
- Geva P, Kahta R, Nakonechny F, Aronov S, Nisnevitch M, 2016., Increased copper bioremediation ability of new transgenic and adapted *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* strains. Environmental Science and Pollution Research, 23, 19613–19625.
- Hlihor RM, Diaconu M, Fertu D, Chelaru C, Sandu I, Tavares T, 2013. Bioremediation of Cr(VI) polluted wastewaters by sorption on heat inactivated *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* biomass. International Journal of Environmental Research, 7, 581–594.
- Hughes SR, López-Núñez JC, Jones MA, Moser BR, Cox EJ, Lindquist M, Galindo-Leva Néstor LA, Riaño-Herrera M, Rodriguez-Valencia N, Gast F, Cedeño DL, Tasaki K, Brown RC, Darzins A, Brunner L, 2014. Sustainable conversion of coffee and other crop wastes to biofuels and bioproducts using coupled biochemical and thermochemical processes in a multi-stage biorefinery concept. Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology, 98, 8413–8431.
- Hunter WJ, 2014. Pseudomonas selenii praecipitans proteins potentially involved in selenite reduction. Current Microbiology, 69, 69–74.
- Kannan B, Sinha P, Annamalai SK, Arunachalam KD, 2016. Bio decolorization of simulated dye waste water using *Saccharomyces cerevisiae*. Research Journal of Pharmaceutical, Biological and Chemical Sciences, 7, 3022.
- Kasmi M, Chatti A, Hamdi M, Trabelsi I, 2016. Eco-friendly process for soft drink industries wastewater reuse as growth medium for *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* production. Clean Technologies and Environmental Policy, 18, 2265–2278.
- Kogbara RB, 2012. Encouraging microbial activity in cementitious systems: an emerging frontier in contaminated soil treatment. Chemical technology and biotechnology, 88, 501–507.



- Leitão DFGM, Oliveira AA, Keller KM, Vasconcelos BS, Keller LAM, Aronovich M, Rosa CAR, 2016. Eficácia de aditivo à base de parede celular de levedura na dieta de leitoas intoxicadas com zearalenona. Veterinária e Zootecnia, 23, 696–705. 696.
- Madian HR, El-Gendy NS, Farahat LA, Abo-State MA, Ragab AME, 2012. Fungal hydrolysis and saccharification of rice straw and ethanol production. Biosciences, Biotechnology Research Asia, 9, 467–476.
- Massie CM, 2015. The effect of nitrate or live yeast culture on methane mitigation in a continuous culture system. Available online: https://etd.ohiolink.edu/!etd.send\_file?accession= osu1440074849&disposition=inline
- Mathapa BG, Paunov VN, 2013. Fabrication of viable cyborg cells with cyclodextrin functionality. Biomaterial Sciences, 2, 212–219.
- Mitte EK, Corso CR, 2013. Acid dye biodegradation using *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* immobilized with polyethyleneimine-treated sugarcane bagasse. Water, Air, and Soil Pollution, 224.
- Monapathi ME, Bezuidenhout CC, Rhode OHJ, 2016. Water quality and antifungal susceptibility of opportunistic yeast pathogens from rivers. Water Science & Technology, 75, 1319–1331.
- Nicolae P, Alen S, Teodor V, Iosif G, 2015. Study on fermentation capacity of several microbial strains for bioethanol production from lactose. Conference paper: Research people and actual tasks on multidisciplinary sciences. Proceedings of the Fifth International Conference, Volume 1, Lozenec, Bulgaria, 24–28 June, 2015 pp.151–155 ref.10
- Nie X, Dong F, Liu M, He H, Sun S, Bian L, Yang G, Zhang W, Qin Y, Huang R, Li Z, Ren W, Wang L, 2017. Microbially mediated stable uranium phosphate nano-biominerals. Journal of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, 17.
- Ofiteru AM, Ruta LL, Rotaru C, Dumitru I, Dumitru Ene C, Neagoe A, Farcasanu IC, 2012. Overexpression of the PHO84 gene causes heavy metal accumulation and induces Ire1p-dependent unfolded protein response in *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* cells. Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology, 94, 425–435.
- Ojuederie OB, Babalola OO, 2017. Microbial and plant-assisted bioremediation of heavy metal polluted environments: A review. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 14, 1504.
- Peng Q, Liu Y, Zeng G, Xu W, Yang C, Zhang J, 2010. Biosorption of copper(II) by immobilizing *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* on the surface of chitosan-coated magnetic nanoparticles from aqueous solution. Journal of Hazardous Materials, 177, 676–682.
- Pires JF, Ferreira GMR, Reis KC, Schwan RF, Silva CF, 2016. Mixed yeasts inocula for simultaneous production of SCP and treatment of vinasse to reduce soil and fresh water pollution. Journal of Environmental Management, 182, 455–463.
- Procajło Z, Szweda W, Mikulska-Skupień E, Platt-Samoraj A, 2010. Effectiveness of coupled administration of Bioimmuno immunomodulator and Respisure One vaccine in the prophylaxis of mycoplasmal pneumonia of swine. Polish Journal of Veterinary Sciences, 13, 325–331.
- Qinguo W, Jiakuo Y, Yao C, Lei Z, Xiaoyang W, Shuai S, Shisheng M, XiaShuyu X, Honghai Z, 2017. Surface Display of MerR on *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* for Biosorption of Mercury. Molecular Biotechnology, 60, 12–20.
- Rahatgaonkar AM, Mahore NR, 2008. A selective bioreduction of toxic heavy metal ions from aquatic environment by *Saccharomyces cerevisiae*. E-Journal of Chemistry, 5, 918–923.
- Ruta L, Paraschivescu C, Matache M, Avramescu S, Farcasanu IC, 2010. Removing heavy metals from synthetic effluents using "kamikaze" *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* cells. Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology, 85, 763–771.
- Sanchez N, Ruiz RY, Infante N, Cobo M, 2017. Bioethanol production from Cachaza as hydrogen feedstock: effect of ammonium sulfate during fermentation. Energies, 10, 2112.
- Saraswati S, Inderpreet K, Jatinder Kaur K, 2017. Potential of saccharomyces cerevisiae flocculent strain to biosorb copper and cadmium ions from aqueous solution. Desalination and Water Treatment, 83, 111–122.
- Shin MK, Kang ML, Jung MH, Cha SB, Lee WJ, Kim JM, Kim DH, Yoo HS, 2013. Induction of protective immune responses against challenge of *Actinobacillus pleuropneumoniae* by oral administration with *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* expressing Apx toxins in pigs. Veterinary Immunology and Immunopathology, 151, 132–139.
- Sinigaglia M, Di Benedetto N, Bevilacqua A, Corbo MR, Capece A, Romano P, 2010. Yeasts isolated from olive mill wastewaters from southern Italy: technological characterization and potential use for phenol removal. Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology, 87, 2345–2354.



- Somporn P, Ponsri S, 2015. The study of greenhouse gas emissions of ethanol production from agroindustrial fruit residues. IJERD – International Journal of Environmental and Rural Development, 6–2
- Sridhar Chowdary M, Mani Kumar B, Suryanarayana Raju S, 2012. Abatment of surface water contamination by immobilized *Saccharomyces cerevisiae* and *Bacillus coagulans*. Asian Journal of Microbiology, Biotechnology and Environmental Sciences, 4, 571–576.
- Srivastava AK, Agrawal P, 2012. Saccharification with *Phanerochaete chrysosporium* and ethanol production with Saccharomyces cerevisiae. Journal of Atoms and Molecules, 2, 321–331.
- Stefanescu R, Butnariu AE, Zamfirache M, Surleva A, Ciobanu C, Pintilie O, Drochioiu G, 2017. Yeastbased microbiological decontamination of heavy metal contaminated soils of Tarnita. Carpathian journal of earth and environmental sciences, 12, 153–159.
- Suryanarayana MV, Sreedhar S, Babu B, Effect of prebiotic (oligofructose) and probiotic (*Saccharomyces*) feed additives on nutrient utilization, growth, feed conversion and faecal microbiota population in pigs. Conference proceeding.
- Taylor-Pickard J.A., Stevenson Z., Glebocka K., 2008. Formula for the Future: Nutrition Or Pathology?: Elevating Performance and Health in Pigs and Poultry. Wageningen Academic Pub.
- Tetsuro K, Shuzo T, 2012. Biological removal and recovery of toxic heavy metals in water environment. Critical Reviews in Environmental Science and Technology, 42, 1007–1057.
- Weber WJ and Morris JC, 1963. Kinetics of adsorption on carbon solution. Journal of the Sanitary Engineering Division American Society, 89, 31–59.
- Westfall PJ, Gardner TS, 2011. Industrial fermentation of renewable diesel fuels. Current Opinion in Biotechnology, 22, 344–350.
- Yazar G, Tavman Ş, 2012. Functional and Technological Aspects of Sourdough Fermentation with *Lactobacillus sanfranciscensis*. Food Engineering Reviews, 4, 171–190.
- Zaied KA, Abd El-Mageed HN, Fayzalla EA, Sharief AE, Zehry AA. Enhancement assimilation of nitrite and nitrate containing factory effluents via recombinants induced in yeast and bacteria. Australian Journal of Basic and Applied Sciences, 3, 17–27.
- Zaied, K.A., El Mageed HN, Fayzalla EA, Sharief AE, Zehry AA, 2009. Induction of bacterial and yeast recombinants and their decontaminated factory effluents. Australian Journal of Basic and Applied Sciences, 3, 28–48.
- Zaied KA, El Mageed HN, Fayzalla EA, Sharief AE, Zehry AA, 2008. Effect of yeast and bacterial recombinants on the uptake of heavy metals from wastewater. Australian Journal of Basic and Applied Sciences, 2, 685–700.
- Zhang B, Shahbazi A, Wang L, Diallo O, 2012. The pre-treatment, enzymatic hydrolysis, and fermentation of cattails from constructed wetlands. Energy Sources, Part A, 35, 246–252.